## WESTCHESTER LIBRARY SYSTEM

#### MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

## TUESDAY, MARCH 15, 2022 - 12:00 NOON, VIA ZOOM

Committee members attending: Andrea Bober, Cathy Draper, Julie Mills-Worthey, Susan Morduch Other Trustees attending: Maureen LeBlanc, Karen Kelley, Francis Okelo, Wes Iwanski, Karen Zevin WLS staff attending: Terry Kirchner, Rob Caluori

The meeting was called to order at 12:04 p.m. by Cathy Draper, Chair.

Following a brief discussion of the work plan for the year, the committee discussed a proposed revision of the Bylaws in order to conform with the revised WLS mission and vision statements adopted in September 2021. Upon a motion by Cathy Draper, seconded by Susan Morduch, the committee (other than Ms. Mills-Worthey, who was not present for the vote) voted unanimously to recommend to the full Board of Trustees the following revised "Statement of Purpose" in the Bylaws:

"WLS is a cooperative public library service agency having as members the 38 public libraries in Westchester County. The mission of WLS is to empower lives and communities by connecting people in Westchester County with the resources, services and programs available through WLS and the member libraries. WLS will serve as a center of innovation for the Westchester County library community. It will provide model programs, affordable and easy-to-use information technology, and support services that enable libraries to continuously improve service to their communities."

Following a discussion of proposed amendments to WLS Policy #9, "Whistle-Blower Protection", the committee unanimously voted, upon motion by Andrea Bober and seconded by Julie Mills-Worthy, to recommend to the full Board of Trustees an amended version of the policy in the form attached to these minutes.

There followed a brief discussion of possible topics for future meetings of the committee, and in particular any issues that might emerge from the upcoming report of the equity audit.

The meeting was adjourned at 12:45 p.m. upon motion by Susan Morduch, seconded by Andrea Bober and unanimously approved.

Respectfully submitted,

Cathy Draper

# DRAFT March 2022

#### Marked to show changes from existing policy

#### WESTCHESTER LIBRARY SYSTEM

#### POLICY #9

Subject: Whistle-Blower Protection

Application: Trustees, employees, independent contractors and volunteers

#### Introduction

Westchester Library System (WLS) requires its trustees, officers, employees (which term, as used in this policy, shall include former employees and individual, independent contractors), volunteers and representatives to observe high standards of business and personnel ethics in the conduct of their duties and responsibilities. Trustees, officers, employees, volunteers and representatives of WLS must practice honesty and integrity in fulfilling their responsibilities and comply with all applicable laws, regulations and policies.

Each member of the WLS community has the responsibility to report actions that <u>such</u> individual reasonably believes is in violation of any <u>violate</u>-laws, regulations, and/or Code of Ethics, or that such individual reasonably believes poses a substantial and specific danger to public health or safety. In keeping with WLS's commitment to fostering a community of integrity and staff support, employees are expected to report concerns they may have relating to such violations.

Matters which should be reported under this policy include suspected fraud, theft, embezzlement, accounting or auditing irregularities, bribery, kickbacks, misuse of WLS's assets, harassment or suspected regulatory compliance violations.

The WLS Executive Director shall be responsible for the administration of this policy and shall provide a copy of this policy to all trustees, officers and\_employees, and to all volunteers who provide substantial services to WLS. <u>A notice describing the protections</u>, rights and obligations under this policy shall be posted conspicuously in easily accessible areas frequented by employees and applicants for employment.

# **Reporting Infractions**

An employee who suspects wrongdoing by a colleague should first reach out to his/her supervisor to address the matter directly. If the matter cannot be resolved at this level, or if for some reason the employee is uncomfortable with bringing the matter to his/her supervisor's attention, the employee should contact the WLS Executive Director or, if necessary, the Chairperson of the WLS Board of Trustees' Audit Committee. Trustees or Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Font: Bold, Italic, Strikethrough

# other volunteers may report suspected wrongdoing directly to the Chairperson of the WLS Board of Trustees' Audit Committee.

## **Investigation**

Ordinarily, the Executive Director or the Chair of the Audit Committee of the Board of Trustees will conduct, or will appoint an individual to conduct, a preliminary investigation. During the preliminary investigation, such investigator will discuss the complaint with the manager responsible for the department named in the complaint. If the preliminary investigation shows no justification for a complaint, the complaint will be closed and the complainant will be notified of this decision.

If the preliminary investigation reveals potential wrongdoing, the investigator will pass on the complaint to the Audit Committee of the Board of Trustees. They, in turn, will decide how the investigation is to be carried out, in consultation with the Executive Director. The complainant will receive general information on the progress of the investigation and its outcome, unless doing so would jeopardize the investigation. The Executive Director and/or Chairperson of the Audit Committee will present the results of all investigations and settlement of all complaints to the Board of Trustees in a timely fashion.

**Reporting Infractions** 

## **Confidentiality**

All reports made under this policy, and investigations relating thereto, shall be kept confidential to the extent possible, consistent with the need to conduct an adequate investigation. Disclosure of such reports to individuals not involved in the investigation will be viewed as a serious disciplinary offense.

## **Retaliatory Actions Prohibited**

WLS shall not take any retaliatory action against an employee because such individual (i) discusses or threatens to disclose to a supervisor or to a public body an activity, policy or practice of WLS that such individual reasonably believes is in violation of any law, rule or regulation, or that such individual reasonably believes poses a substantial and specific danger to the public health or safety; (ii) provides information to, or testifies before, any public body conducting an investigation, hearing or inquiry into any such activity, policy or practice by WLS; or (iii) objects to, or refuses to participate in any such activity, policy or practice.

A trustee, officer, employee, volunteer or representative who makes a report is protected fromProhibited retaliatory actions include any intimidation, discrimination, harassment, victimization or other retaliation, and, in the case of employees, including (A) adverse employment-actions or threats to takeconsequence that results from making the report. actions against an employee in the terms or conditions of employment, including but not limited to discharge, suspension, and demotion; (B) actions or threats to take actions that

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic

Formatted: Left
Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic

Formatted: Left

Page 2

#### WLS Policy #9 - Whistle-Blower Protection

would adversely affect a former employee's current or future employment; or (C) contacting or threatening to contact immigration authorities or otherwise reporting or threatening to report the suspected citizenship or immigration status of an employee or member of an employee's family or household.

The protection against retaliatory action provided above, to the extent it pertains to disclosure to a public body, shall not apply to an employee unless such employee has made a good faith effort to bring the activity, policy or practice to the attention of a supervisor and has afforded WLS a reasonable opportunity to correct such activity, policy or practice. Such notification is not required where (a) there is an imminent and serious danger to the public health or safety; (b) the employee reasonably believes that reporting to the supervisor would result in the destruction of evidence or other concealment of the activity, policy or practice; (c) such activity, policy or practice could reasonably be expected to lead to endangering the welfare of a minor; (d) the employee reasonably believes that reporting to the supervisor would result in physical harm to the employee or any other person; or (e) the employee reasonably believes that the supervisor is already aware of the activity, policy or practice and will not correct it.

-Managers must ensure that the procedures are available and known to all employees and that all employees have easy access to the mechanism for making a report.

All reports made under this policy, and investigations relating thereto, shall be kept confidential to the extent possible, consistent with the need to conduct an adequate investigation. Disclosure of such reports to individuals not involved in the investigation will be viewed as a serious disciplinary offense.

An employee who suspects wrongdoing by a colleague should first reach out to his/her supervisor to address the matter directly. If the matter cannot be resolved at this level, or if for some reason the employee is uncomfortable with bringing the matter to his/her supervisor's attention, the employee should contact the WLS Executive Director or, if necessary, the Chairperson of the WLS Board of Trustees' Audit Committee. Trustees or other volunteers may report suspected wrongdoing directly to the Chairperson of the WLS Board of Trustees' Audit Committee.

#### **Investigation**

Ordinarily, the Executive Director or the Chair of the Audit Committee will direct the Controller to conduct a preliminary investigation. During the preliminary investigation, the Controller will discuss the complaint with the manager responsible for the department named in the complaint. If the preliminary investigation shows no justification for a complaint, the complaint will be closed and the complainant will be notified of this decision.

If the preliminary investigation reveals potential wrongdoing, the Executive Director will pass on the complaint to the Audit Committee of the Board of Trustees, if the situation warrants. They, in turn, will decide how the investigation is to be carried out, in eonsultation with the Executive Director. The staff person making the complaint will

Page 3

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic
Formatted: Left

WLS Policy #9 – Whistle-Blower Protection

receive general information on the progress of the investigation and its outcome, unless doing so would jeopardize the investigation. The Executive Director and/or Chairperson of the WLS Board Audit Committee will present the results of all investigations and settlement of all complaints to the Board of Trustees in a timely fashion.

Last approved: May 26, 2015\_\_\_\_\_, 2022

Page 4